
 Agenda

Page 1

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5)

Time and Date
2.00 pm on Wednesday, 7th October, 2015

Place
Committee Rooms 2 and 3 - Council House

Public Business

1. Apologies and Substitutions  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Minutes  

(a) To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 9th September, 2015  
(Pages 3 - 6)

(b) Matters Arising  

4. Out of Hours Dental Services in Coventry  (Pages 7 - 8)

Briefing note from David Williams, NHS England, who has been invited to the 
meeting for the consideration of this item

5. Winter Pressures Including Delayed Discharge  (Pages 9 - 12)

Presentation

Briefing note (attached) 

6. Adult Social Care Annual Report 2014-15 (Local Account)  (Pages 13 - 56)

Report of the Executive Director of People

7. Outstanding Issues Report  

Outstanding issues have been picked up in the Work Programme

8. Work Programme 2015-16  (Pages 57 - 64)

Report of the Scrutiny Co-ordinator

9. Any other items of Public Business  

Public Document Pack



Page 2

Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as matters 
of urgency because of the special circumstances involved

Private Business
Nil

Chris West, Executive Director, Resources, Council House Coventry

Tuesday, 29 September 2015

Notes: 1) The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Liz Knight, Governance Services, Council House, Coventry, telephone 7683 3073, 
alternatively information about this meeting can be obtained from the following web 
link:                   http://moderngov.coventry.gov.uk

2)  Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Liz 
Knight as soon as possible and no later than 1.00 p.m. on 7th October, 2015 giving 
their reasons for absence and the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be 
attending the meeting as their substitute. 

3) Scrutiny Board Members who have an interest in any report to this 
meeting, but who are not Members of this Scrutiny Board, have been invited to notify 
the Chair by 12 noon on the day before the meeting that they wish to speak on a 
particular item. The Member must indicate to the Chair their reason for wishing to 
speak and the issue(s) they wish to raise.

Membership: Councillors M Ali, K Caan (By Invitation), J Clifford (By Invitation), 
D Galliers, J Innes, T  Khan, J O'Boyle, D Skinner, D Spurgeon, K Taylor, S Walsh 
and D Welsh (Chair)

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms

If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 
OR it you would like this information in another format or 
language please contact us.

Liz Knight
Telephone: (024) 7683 3073
e-mail: liz.knight@coventry.gov.uk

http://moderngov.coventry.gov.uk/
mailto:liz.knight@coventry.gov.uk


– 1 –

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5) held at 2.00 

pm on Wednesday, 9 September 2015

Present: 
Members: Councillor D Welsh (Chair)

Councillor M Ali
Councillor A Andrews
Councillor D Galliers
Councillor J Innes
Councillor J O'Boyle
Councillor S Walsh

Co-Opted Member: David Spurgeon

Other Member: Councillor J Clifford

Other representatives: Joan Beck, Chair of the Safeguarding Adults Board
Sue Davies, Coventry and Rugby CCG
Mark Radford, University Hospitals Coventry and 
Warwickshire
David Smithson, Chair of Review Board
Glynis Washington, Coventry and Rugby CCG

 
Employees:

S Brake, People Directorate
V Castree, Resources Directorate
L Knight, Resources Directorate
C Parker, People Directorate
D Watts, People Directorate

Apologies: Councillor K Caan, T  Khan, D Skinner and K Taylor 

Public Business

14. Declarations of Interest 

There were no disclosable pecuniary interests declared.

15. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 1st July, 2015 were signed as a true record.

With reference to Minute 10 headed ‘Reducing Health Inequalities in Coventry’, in 
particular the request that the Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board 
(4) considers how the Community Development Team works in the 
neighbourhoods with particular reference to the hard to reach and disadvantaged 
communities and individuals, and how support is offered to the most vulnerable, 
the Board were informed that the item had been added to the Scrutiny Board (4) 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



– 2 –

work programme and feedback would be provided to Board members at the 
appropriate time.

16. Serious Incident Review - Miss G 

The Scrutiny Board considered a briefing note of the Executive Director of People 
attached to which was the Executive Summary report which presented the findings 
of a Coventry Safeguarding Serious Incident Review which followed the death of 
Miss G in the spring of 2013. Appended to the summary report was an action plan 
incorporating the lessons learnt from the review. 

Joan Beck, Chair of the Safeguarding Adults Board and David Smithson, Chair of 
the Review Group attended the meeting for the consideration of this item along 
with Mark Radford, University Hospitals Coventry and Warwickshire and Sue 
Davis and Glynis Washington, Coventry and Rugby Clinical Commissioning 
Group. The report was also to be considered by the Cabinet Member for Health 
and Adult Services at his meeting on 12th October, 2015 and Councillor Clifford, 
Deputy Cabinet Member also attended the meeting.

Miss G was a vulnerable 40 year old who was part of a loving and supportive 
family. She suffered from a long term degenerative neurological disease and was 
confined to a wheelchair. She lived in independent accommodation and received 
22 hours of support a day which was funded by adult social care. She died in a fire 
which was intense and took hold rapidly when she was alone. The likely cause of 
the fire was from a dropped cigarette or cigarette ignition source.

The Chair of the Review Board expressed her condolences to the family and 
apologised for the length of time that it had taken to reach this stage of the review 
process. 

The summary report highlighted that a serious incident review took place because 
an adult had died or had been seriously injured or impaired and abuse or neglect 
was known or suspected to be a factor. The process was about learning lessons 
and not apportioning blame. The report set out the background to the case; 
provided a summary of facts and findings of the case; included an analysis of the 
circumstances; detailed conclusions which formed the basis of a commitment to 
action across organisations in the city to prevent such a situation occurring in the 
future; and set out what would happen next. The action plan set out 
recommendations with actions required, gave target dates and the appropriate 
lead officers as well as highlighting expected outcomes.   

The Board questioned those present on a number of issues relating to the 
circumstances of the case and responses were provided, matters raised included:

 Concerns about why reviews hadn’t been undertaken when the 2007 
psychology report should have precipitated a thorough multi-agency review 
and there had been recurrent concerns and issues raised by the family 
relating to care provision, risk assessment and record keeping.

 Had the lessons learnt from the case and the resulting actions been 
implemented already

 When a number of agencies had recommendations to implement, who was 
responsible for ensuring these were carried out

Page 4



– 3 –

 A concern that the action plan did not contain a recommendation/action 
covering a requirement to ensure that regular reviews would be undertaken

 Clarification about why Miss G received 22 hours care and not 24 hours care, 
in light of the risks associated with her being left on her own

 Details about the regulations relating to the passive smoking from the carers’ 
perspective

 With reference to the evaluations included in the multi-agency audit 
programme, how would staff on the ground raise their issues to feed into the 
process

 How would staff be protected when raising concerns
 The importance of all health and social care assessment tools including fire 

safety risk assessments, with all key staff receiving appropriate training
 The support that can be provided by the fire service to mitigate fire risks
 How can the views of everyone involved in an individual’s care be taken into 

account and the importance of their role acknowledged i.e. front line carers, 
family, neighbours and friends.

RESOLVED that:

(1) The Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Services, at his meeting on 
12th October, 2015 be recommended to request that the Action Plan is 
amended to include an additional action to ensure that care plans are 
regularly reviewed, particularly when concerns are raised; that a further 
action be included to ensure that the views/concerns of everyone involved in 
a person’s care including carers, family, neighbours and friends are always 
taken into account; and that the reviews are undertake in a timely manner.

(2) The Safeguarding Adults Board be requested to report back to the 
Scrutiny Board in six months to review the implementation of the Action 
Plan contained in the report.       

17. System Wide Review - Mrs F 

RESOLVED that consideration of the report and action plan concerning the 
System Wide Review following the death of Mrs F be deferred to the Board 
meeting scheduled for 18th November, 2015.

18. Outstanding Issues Report 

The Scrutiny Board noted that all outstanding issues had been included in the 
Work Programme for 2015-16.

19. Work Programme 2015-16 

The Scrutiny Board noted their Work Programme for the current municipal year. 
The Board were informed that an additional meeting had been arranged for 2.00 
p.m. on Tuesday, 3rd November, 2015 to consider a report on Improving 
Accommodation for Older People and the Director of Public Health Annual Report. 

20. Any other items of Public Business 

There were no additional items of public business.

Page 5



– 4 –

(Meeting closed at 3.00 pm)

Page 6



 Briefing note 

To:  Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5)                               Date: 7 October 2015

Subject:  Out of Hours Dental Services in Coventry

1 Purpose of the Note

1.1 This paper provides a summary of the current service provision for Out of Hours Dental 
Services, the types of services available and describe the potential future developments for 
Out of Hours Care.

2 Recommendations
2.1 That the Board note the services available and comment on potential future developments 

for Out of Hours Care.

3 Information/Background

3.1 Current Provision
There is an Out of Hours Dental Service, commissioned by NHS England and provided by 
a dentist, who operates the service from the Dental Practice on Coundon Road.  The 
service operates Monday – Friday 20.00 – 22.00 hrs, on Saturday, Sunday and Bank 
Holidays the dentist triages patients and if they need to be seen, groups patients into a two 
hour slot to be seen. 

For patients in Warwickshire there is a separately commissioned service available.

3.2 Services Provided Out of Hours
Whilst recognising that tooth ache is painful for the individual patient it is rarely life 
threatening.  The expectation is that most patients are able to make an appointment to see 
their own dentist within the standard working week.  There are a few exceptions to this and 
Dentists triage into routine, urgent and emergency categories.

Emergency treatment for a dental problem includes swelling of the face which is increasing 
and or affecting the airway, haemorrhage, or trauma from, for example, a car accident or 
other serious event, all of which would require treatment in A&E.

Urgent dental treatment is provided in the primary care setting (in and out of hours) and 
generally involves relief of pain / pain management, potentially treatment of abscess or 
infection. There are a limited number of treatments available as described in the Patient 
Charges Regulations and the GDS contract and regulations.  Primarily Out of Hours care is 
stabilisation of the mouth until routine dental care can be accessed.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

3.3 Accessing Out of Hours Dentists
The pathway to accessing an Out of Hours Dentist should be through calling 111.  This 
non-life threatening NHS number operates a pathway triage system that identifies if a 
patient needs advice and guidance, routine treatment, urgent treatment or emergency 
treatment.  Staff operating 111 can then access the Directory of Services (DOS) to identify 
the nearest location for the type of treatment should the patient require it.

3.4 Future Developments for Out of Hours Dentistry
NHS England are committed to reviewing all aspects of Urgent & Emergency Care.  A 
national programme is being led by Sir Bruce Keogh (Medical Director for NHS England).  
The proposal over the next 3 to 5 years is to develop a new dialogue with the public built on 
the foundations of 111.

The future proposal is that 111 would have greater access to the IT systems of a wide 
variety of NHS providers.  So having triaged a patient as needing Pharmacy advice, or for a 
dental appointment, the 111 provider would be able to directly book patients an 
appointment with a Pharmacist or with their own dentist for the following working day.  For 
dental issues this would provide people with the reassurance that they will get prompt 
dental treatment the following working day.  NHS England believes this model is some 3 to 
5 years away from implementation.

More locally the Out of Hours Contract will be renewed during 2016, this provides NHS 
England with another opportunity to review uptake, access and need before re-procuring 
the service for the short term until the Urgent and Emergency Care changes are 
implemented.

Good oral hygiene and regular visits to the Dentist should be promoted and NHS England 
does work with Public Health colleagues to promote prevention in the first instance.  

NHS England has welcome the invite from Health Scrutiny Board as it has supported a 
review of provision and a greater consideration of options for the future.

David Williams
Locality Director
Coventry & Warwickshire
NHS England (West Midlands)

Page 8



 Briefing Note
To:       Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5)

Date:   07 October 2015

Subject: Winter Pressures including Delayed Discharge

1. Purpose of the Note

1.1Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5) requested an update in relation to Winter 
Pressures including Delayed Discharges in the form of a presentation around 
challenges faced by the system, action taken and proposals included in the current 
winter pressures plan.  

2. Recommendations

2.1Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5) to note the update provided and provide 
any comments and feedback in relation to the current Winter Resilience Plan.

3. Information/Background

3.1All health and social care systems have faced increasing challenges in relation to 
managing pressures that create demand particularly in acute hospital settings.

3.2The three main performance indicators that act as a barometer of the current state 
are 4 hour waiting targets for Emergency Departments, the 18 week Referral to 
Treatment Target and the numbers of Delayed Transfers of Care.

3.3Throughout autumn, winter and spring 2014/2015 there were significant challenges 
within the Coventry System, resulting in greater levels of scrutiny from both NHS 
England and the Trust Development Authority.

3.4The System Resilience Group, that brings together senior executives from the main 
health and social care partners, is the key forum locally where these challenges are 
now monitored and actions put in place.

3.5In order to meet the challenges a two-pronged approach was taken. A short term 
tactical action plan was put in place to drive immediate improvements and a longer 
term system-wide transformation programme initiated to consider they key activities 
that need to be delivered over the next 2-3 years in light of the decreasing 
resources available across health and social care.   

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 3

4. Performance to date

4.1Detailed performance information will be included in the slide-set that will be 
circulated prior to the Scrutiny Board Meeting.

5. Key pieces of work in year

5.1One of the main pieces of work that was considered and implemented to try to 
address the dual issues of 4 hour waiting targets and Delayed Transfers of Care 
was a “Perfect Week” Activity. This activity was based on a model recommended by 
the Emergency Care Improvement support Team (ECIST) and the planning was led 
by University Hospital Coventry and Warwickshire with support from partner 
agencies. 

5.2Locally the Perfect week was known as “Breaking free for our Patients” and had a 
brand developed around it based around the concept of asking if people had “The 
buzz” and getting people to “Bee Ready”. The Brand included a Bee. The branding 
of the local perfect week has been complimented by ECIST who felt this helped in 
getting people talking about the perfect week and what was being done. 

5.3The Perfect Week has two main aims. The first being that it focuses on engaging all 
departments and partner agencies in trying to identify either small improvements 
that make a big difference, or looking at how new activities can be tested to 
establish what makes a real difference to activity and a patients journey through the 
hospital. The second element is that it helps to “re-set the system”.

5.4Whilst the outcomes of “Perfect Weeks” can differ greatly from trust-to-trust, the 
Coventry perfect week was considered successful by ECIST. There was a 
significant improvement in 4 hour Emergency Department waits with a sustained 
improvement exceeding national targets. 

5.5The impact on Delayed Transfers of Care was not as great but improved in 
subsequent weeks, although still falls short of national targets.

5.6The second significant piece of work has been a capacity and demand analysis 
being carried out to understand where there are potential bottlenecks in the system 
and support in prioritising action plans and pieces of work to be taken forward by 
the Transformation Programme.

5.7This piece of work has concluded the analysis stage and is now progressing the 
main recommendations that need to be taken forward.

Page 10



Page 3 of 3

6. Winter Resilience Plan

6.1Each year a winter resilience plan is developed in order to ensure there are actions 
taken to address challenges that may present over the winter period.

6.2In carrying out this work there were a number of schemes that it was felt have been 
agreed to continue throughout the year and are therefore no longer showing on the 
winter resilience plan but remain in place.

6.3The process for agreeing the final resilience plan is that the System Resilience 
Group will sign off the final plan. Identification of and prioritisation of schemes is 
currently underway and proposals will be presented to the System Resilience Group 
on 06 October 2015.

6.4Whilst a copy of the current draft resilience plan will be circulated for consideration 
by Scrutiny Board, the final version may change following challenge at System 
Resilience Group.

7. Supporting information to be circulated in advance

The following will be circulated in advance of the Scrutiny Board Meeting for 
consideration:

- A short film that explains the perfect week activity  that was delivered locally is 
available to be shown at Scrutiny Board

- Supporting presentation slides 

- Copy of the current winter resilience action plan

David Watts, Assistant Director – Adult Social Care
Telephone: 024 7683 3420
Email: david.watts3@coventry.gov.uk

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 Public report
Cabinet Member Report

                        1 of 6

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5) 07 October 2015 
Cabinet Member 12 October 2015 

                                                                                                   
Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Services – Councillor K. Caan

Director Approving Submission of the Report:
Executive Director, People 

Ward(s) affected: 
All

Title:
Adult Social Care Annual Report 2014/15 (Local Account)

Is this a key decision?
No. 

This is a report of performance for 2014/15 and no recommendations are made that have 
significant financial or service implications. 

Executive Summary:

The Adult Social Care Annual Report 2014/15 (Local Account) describes the performance of 
Adult Social Care and the progress made against the priorities for the year.

Although there is not a statutory requirement to produce an annual report, it is considered good 
practice as it provides a public record of the performance of Adult Social Care to local citizens. 
The report also provides an opportunity to be open and transparent about the successes and 
challenges of the year and to show how outcomes are improving for those supported through 
Adult Social Care.  The production of an annual report is part of the Local Government 
Associations (LGA) approach to Sector Led Improvement, launched in 2011.  This approach was 
launched following the removal of national targets and assessments with the aim of driving 
improvement through self-regulation, improvement and innovation.

In the completion of the 2014/15 report, engagement activity has been undertaken with 
Healthwatch Coventry, the independent champion for health and social care in Coventry 
alongside Partnership Boards across Adult Social Care in order to obtain feedback about our 
progress on last year’s priorities and to enable discussion on key areas of activity for the coming 
year. 

Feedback on readability and content was also noted and as a result of this the 2014/15 Annual 
Report is shorter than previous years.    

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



                              2 of 6

Recommendations:

1. Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5) is asked to:

     (i) Consider the report and submit any comments to Cabinet Member for their 
consideration on the content of the report

2. Cabinet Member is asked to:

(i) Consider comments from the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5)

(ii) Approve the publication of the Adult Social Care Annual Report 2014/15 (Local 
Account) 

List of Appendices included:

Appendix One - Adult Social Care Annual Report 2014/15 (Local Account) 

Appendix Two - Healthwatch commentary

Background papers:
 
None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?

Yes – Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5) on 07 October 2015.

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?

No

Will this report go to Council?

No

Page 14



                              3 of 6

Report title: Adult Social Care Annual Report 2014/15 (Local Account)

1. Context (or background)

1.1 The Local Government Association (LGA) launched its approach to Sector Led 
Improvement in 2011.  This approach was launched following the removal of national 
targets and assessments with the aim of driving improvement through self-regulation, 
improvement and innovation. As part of this approach to Sector Led Improvement the 
expectation that an Annual Report is produced by all local authorities with Adult Social 
Care responsibilities was described by the Department of Health in the Adult Social Care 
Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) 2011/12.

1.2 The production of an Annual Report is not a statutory requirement, nor has any statutory 
guidance been issued by central Government on its content or style. The first annual report 
in Coventry was produced for 2010/11 with a report being produced every year since. 

1.3 In Coventry the Local Account will be called an Annual Report. It is considered that 'Annual 
Report' is more easily recognisable and accessible language than 'Local Account'.  The 
Annual Report describes the performance, reflects on achievements and considers the 
challenges for Adult Social Care. It is intended to provide assurance to the people of 
Coventry, Elected Members and partners, that Adult Social Care is delivering its objectives 
and is achieving positive outcomes for people in Coventry. 

1.4 In producing the report it is important that the Council understands whether the support 
offered to people is making a difference. Adult Social Care is committed to ‘Making it Real’, 
a national, sector-wide commitment that sets out what people want to see and experience 
and what they would expect to find when support services are personalised. To address 
this agenda the Annual Report is structured around the ‘Making it Real’ themes, which are 
as follows:

 Information and advice: having the information I need, when I need it
 Active and supportive communities: keeping friends, family and place
 Flexible integrated care and support: my support, my own way
 Workforce: my support staff
 Positive risk enablement: feeling in control and safe
 Personal budgets and self-funding: my money

1.5 The content of the Annual Report is informed by what people who receive services and 
their carers and families tell the Council about their care and support. A number of case 
studies and direct quotes have been used to demonstrate the impact Adult Social Care, 
and its partner agencies, has on individuals and their families. Those who have commented 
on previous reports have consistently stated that case studies are an important aspect of 
the report, as they help to demonstrate positive outcomes for individuals and the difference 
it has made to their lives. 

1.6 The Annual Report also identifies the key challenges for Adult Social Care, for example 
ensuring our workforce continues to develop its knowledge and expertise to work with 
people in a way that is truly personalised and supports their well-being. This includes 
reviewing how we support people with the individual being very much at the centre and 
continuing to manage with a reducing financial resource.

2. Options considered and recommended proposal

Page 15



                              4 of 6

2.1 An Annual Report provides the opportunity to evidence and communicate Adult Social 
Care's performance in an accessible and transparent way as part of an overall approach to 
Sector Led Improvement.  It is therefore recommended that the Annual Report for 2014/15 
is endorsed by Cabinet Member (Health and Adult Services) and made publicly available.

3. Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 The content of the Annual Report has been developed using feedback from people who 
use services regarding the support they receive from the Council and other partner 
organisations in the city.

3.2 During the development of the Annual Report, views on potential content alongside 
feedback on progress made and future priority areas were obtained. These views were 
gathered from the Older People’s Partnership, Learning Disabilities Partnership Board and 
the Physical and Sensory Impairment Partnership. Healthwatch Coventry was also invited 
to comment on an early draft of the report.

4. Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 Once approved, the Annual Report will be published on the Council's internet pages and 
shared with partners. 

5. Comments from the Executive Director, Resources

5.1 Financial implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from the Annual Report. The cost of 
issuing the report will be met from within existing budgets.

5.2 Legal implications

There are no direct legal implications arising from the Annual Report.  

The publication of the report is in accordance with the 2011 Department of Health recommendation 
that all local authorities' Adult Social Care directorates publish an Annual Report. This shows how 
the local authority performed against quality standards, and what plans have been agreed with local 
people for the future.

6. Other Implications

6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate 
priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)?

This Annual Report demonstrates the progress of Adult Social Care in maintaining and 
improving outcomes for the population of Coventry. This progress contributes to the 
Council's objectives of citizens living longer, healthier, independent lives and contributes to 
the priorities in the Council Plan to protect the city's most vulnerable people.

Page 16



                              5 of 6

6.2 How is risk being managed?

A range of risks are presented in the delivery of Adult Social Care services which are 
managed through the directorate and corporate risk registers, in conjunction with partners 
across the city. Regular reviews of each risk are undertaken, and mitigating actions put in 
place to ensure the overall risks are reduced as much as possible.

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?

There is no direct impact on the organisation.  

6.4 Equalities / EIA 

An Equalities Impact Assessment is not appropriate for this report. Equality Impact 
Assessments have been built into the delivery of work within Adult Social Care. There has 
been a continued drive to embed equality and diversity within operational practice, 
commissioning plans and performance monitoring.

6.5 Implications for (or impact on) the environment

None

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?

There are no direct impacts for partner organisations. The Annual Report provides an 
overview of Adult Social Care's performance and provides assurance to partners that 
objectives are being achieved.

Report author(s):

Name and job title:
David Watts, Assistant Director, Adult Social Care (Operations)
Pete Fahy, Assistant Director, Commissioning and Transformation

Directorate:
People 

Tel and email contact:
David Watts on (024 7683) 3420 or david.watts3@coventry.gov.uk

Pete Fahy on (024 7683) 3555 or peter.fahy@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate 
or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
David Watts Assistant Director, 

Adult Social Care 
(Operations)

People 05.08.15 05.08.15

Page 17

mailto:david.watts3@coventry.gov.uk
mailto:peter.fahy@coventry.gov.uk


                              6 of 6

Pete Fahy Assistant Director, 
Commissioning and 
Transformation 

People 05.08.15 13.08.15

Vanessa Millar Project Support Officer People 05.08.15 05.08.15

Marc Greenwood Programme Manager People 04.08.15 05.08.15
Liz Knight Governance Services 

Officer 
Resources 05.08.15 06.08.15

Names of approvers for 
submission: 
(Officers and Members)
Ewan Dewar Finance Manager Resources 05.08.15 11.08.15
Janice White Senior Solicitor Resources 05.08.15 25.08.15
Brian M. Walsh Executive Director People 04.09.15 07.09.15

Councillor K. Caan Cabinet Member (Health 
and Adult Services)

- 04.09.15 07.09.15

This report is published on the Council's website:
www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings 

Appendices  

Adult Social Care Annual Report Summary 2014/15 (Local Account)
Healthwatch commentary 

Page 18

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings


1

Adult Social Care 
Annual Report 2014/15 

Local Account

www.coventry.gov.uk/adultsocialcare
Page 19



Contents
Introduction - Setting the context of Adult Social Care

Making a difference

Facts and Figures

Coventry City Council - Adult Social Care Workforce

Key Challenges

Case Study 1 - Being a Carer – Helen’s Story

Case Study 2 - The Pod – Robert’s Story

Case Study 3 - TeleCareline – Alice’s Story

Glossary

Contact Us

 

3

4

5

6

8

14

19

29

32

34

2
Page 20



Social care provides care, support, and safeguards for people in our 
communities who have the highest level of need and for their carers.
Good care and support transforms lives, helping people to live good lives, or 
the best they can, in a variety of circumstances. It enhances health and well-
being, increasing independence, choice and control. 

Social care is a vital connector to other public services, especially the NHS 
but also local housing and community services. It works in partnership with 
community groups, voluntary and private providers and organisations that 
represent people who use services.  (ADASS Distinctive, Valued, Personal.  
Why Social Care Matters: The Next Five Years (2015)).

Adult Social Care in Coventry is part of the People Directorate at Coventry 
City Council. Social care responds to a wide range of needs - from an 18 
year old with autism who needs support to leave home to an 80 year old with 
dementia who needs protection as well as personal care. It helps people to 
live as independently as possible, protects people from harm in vulnerable 
situations, balances risks with rights and offers essential help in times of 
crisis. 

Every year, the Council produces a report to summarise the key 
achievements of the previous year in delivering Adult Social Care in 
Coventry, our performance against our priorities and our plans for the future. 
By acknowledging what we have done well and where we need to improve, 
we can be transparent and accountable to the people who live in Coventry. 
This report covers the period 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015.

Introduction
Setting the context of Adult Social Care

3
Page 21



It is vital that we understand the extent to which the support we provide to 
people is making a positive difference to their lives. In order to help us do 
this we work with organisations including ‘Think Local, Act Personal’ (TLAP), 
a national partnership of over 30 organisations that started in 2011. TLAP 
aims to transform the way care services are delivered through working 
with people who use services and their carers to improve adult health and 
social care through personalised and community-based support. They have 
produced a number of ‘Making it Real’ themes that set out what people want 
to see and experience and what they would expect to find when support 
services are personalised. 

By structuring our annual report based on these themes we are able to 
evidence our progress towards enabling people to have more choice and 
control so they can live full and independent lives. 

The Making it Real themes are as follows:

•	 information and advice: having the information I need, when I need it 
•	 active and supportive communities: keeping friends, family and 		
	 place
•	 flexible integrated care and support: my support, my own way
•	 workforce: my support staff
•	 risk enablement: feeling in control and safe
•	 personal budgets and self-funding: my money

Making a difference  

4
Page 22



Facts and Figures
(covering the period from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015)

Th
e number of requests for

su
pport received from new

cl
ien

ts d
uring the year was

9747
Th

e 
nu

mber of new clients whose request

re
su

lte

d in
 a period of Short-Term Support (t

o 
M

ax
imise Independence) was

1569
Of th

ese new clients,

1111
did not 

go on to require 
ongoing long-term 
support in the year.

The total number of people 
accessing long-term support 

during the year to 31st 
March 2015 was

4429
The number of existing 

clients who also received 
Short-Term Support 

(to Maximise Independence) 
during the year was

522

       Additionally 

2308 
carers received 

support during the 
year or were assessed 

and provided with 
information and advice

5
Page 23



Coventry City Council 
Adult Social Care Workforce 
Over the last few years the workforce in Adult Social Care has been reduced. 
There were 1354 workers on 31st July 2013 compared to 1222 on 31st July 
2014. 

These reductions are due to budget cuts from central government. As a 
consequence the amount of services provided has reduced, with services 
being prioritised on providing support to the most vulnerable in our 
communities. This trend is likely to continue over the coming years, given the 
context of further forecasted budget reductions.

Money 
The Council is a large organisation spending a net £260.7m on revenue 
activity during 2014/15. Each year, the Council reviews its spending in light 
of existing and new legislation, the demographics of the city, available 
resources and the Council’s own priorities and objectives in order to set a 
budget.

As resources continued to be reduced, significant financial pressure existed 
throughout 2014/15 and, with a further reduction in Revenue Support Grant 
of £24m for 2015/16, this pressure will continue into the future.

In overall terms, between 2010/11 and 2015/16 the reduced Government 
funding is equivalent to a like-for-like reduction of £638 for every Coventry 
household.

Directorate
2014/15
Net Budget
(£m)

2014/15
Outturn
(£m)

2014/15
Variance
(£m)

Chief Executives 2.0 2.0 0.0

Public Health 0.1 0.1 0.0

Place 33.5 33.0 (0.5)

People 155.0 161.4 6.4

Resources 13.7 11.5 (2.2)

Contingency & Central Budgets 54.2 52.7 (1.5)

Subtotal 258.5 260.7 2.2
Contribution from Reserves (2.2) (2.2)

Total City Council 258.5 258.5 0.0

6
Page 24



The ‘Spend on People’ referred to in the previous chart was spent across the 
following services:

2014/15 Adult Social Care Net Spend (£74.0m)

2014/15 Net Spend on Services (£52.7m)

0.1 Commissioning, Assessment and
Overheads

Other

Spend on people

Transport

Central Recharges (including 
Property, Finance, HR, ICT & 
Administration)

Training and Development

13.2

0.2

6.5

1.3

52.7

Day Opportunities

Direct Payments

Equipment & Adaptions

Homecare

Housing with Care

Nursing

Residential

Supported Living

3.3

7.2

0.5

13.5

6.2

2.5
2.0

17.5

7
Page 25



Key Challenges
Continuing to meet the expectations and requirements of the Care Act 2014 
provide both a great challenge and opportunity for Adult Social Care in 
Coventry.

The challenges exist in ensuring our workforce continues to develop 
its knowledge and expertise to work with people in a way that is truly 
personalised and supports their well-being. This is applicable to both 
our directly employed workforce and the workforce employed by other 
organisations that deliver Adult Social Care on our behalf.    

Going hand in hand with the challenges of legislative change is the 
opportunity presented to change how we support people, with the 
individual being very much at the centre. Our new Principal Social Worker, 
the champion of social work practice within the Local Authority, will be 
fundamental to supporting how we shape our services and how we respond 
to people. We also need to think more broadly about the wider ability of the 
City Council to support Adult Social Care. For example, the contribution of 
Public Health to prevention and the work underway in the city to improve our 
environment and create jobs through economic regeneration all play a part 
in the well-being of our residents.

The financial challenges facing the Council and Adult Social Care remain 
significant. How we can continue to meet the needs of our population with 
a reducing resource base is an issue for the Council alongside its health 
partners.  Ensuring that services are integrated, wherever possible, will 
provide one way to manage resources more effectively, although it is clear 
that difficult decisions will need to continue to be made as to how and where 
our limited resources can be put to greatest effect.

8
Page 26



Update on priorities we highlighted for 2014/15
In last year’s Annual Report we committed to a number of priorities for 
2014/15 and said we would improve on a number of areas. Here is the 
progress we have made:

Care Act 2014

We said we would:
Ensure that we 
were ready for the 
introduction of the 
Care Act 2014 on 1 
April 2015. This is the 
most significant piece 
of legislation governing 
Adult Social Care to be 
introduced for over 60 
years.  

We achieved…
Successful implementation of the Act.

In order to do this we delivered important changes 
in a number of areas including: 
 
•	 Prevention – we improved how we respond 

to people when they first contact Adult 
Social Care, improved our information and 
advice, enhanced our Telecare service and 
made changes to how we provide short-term 
support. We also produced a new Target 
Operating Model to make is easier for people 
to understand what happens once they contact 
Adult Social Care.

•	 Personalisation – we extended local advocacy 
arrangements to support people who have a 
‘substantial difficulty’ in being fully involved in 
making decisions about their care and support.  

•	 Carers – we entered into a new arrangement 
with the Carers Trust to improve how we 
respond to Carers. The Carers Trust now 
undertake some carers’ assessments on behalf 
of the Council.

•	 Commissioning – we produced and launched 
our first Market Position Statement which 
described to providers of Adult Social Care the 
type of market we want to develop in the city.

•	 Communication – we produced a range of 
communication materials to ensure that the 
impact of the Care Act was communicated 
clearly to people that live in the city. 

9
Page 27



We said we would:
Continue to support 
carers to enable them 
to continue caring. 

We completed…
a review of Carers’ Services to help plan future 
commissioning options for carers and for people 
living with dementia. This included surveys and 
focus groups during June and July 2014 with 
carers, staff in health and social care and service 
providers as well as us taking account of what we 
already know. 

We will use this feedback to develop our support 
to carers during 2015.

We said we would:
Develop an all-age 
disability approach for 
supporting children, 
young people and 
adults with disabilities.

We created…
an All Age Disability Team to work alongside 
people with disabilities and their carers across 
3 age groups (0-14s,15-25s, and over 26s) to 
support their personal, social care and health 
outcomes.

The team is made up of Social Workers, 
Occupational Therapists and Special Education 
Needs Officers from the Council and Consultant 
Psychiatrists, Community Nurses, Health 
Occupational Therapists, Speech and Language 
Therapists and Psychologists from the Coventry 
and Warwickshire Partnership Trust. 

•	 Universal deferred payment scheme – we 
established a scheme that allows people to 
defer their care costs until they choose to sell 
their home, or until after their death.

•	 Amendments to existing charging policy – we 
consulted on a range of proposals for changes 
to our charging policy to bring this into line with 
the requirements of the Care Act.

During 2015 and beyond we will continue to 
develop our work to meet the requirements of the 
Care Act particularly around well-being, prevention 
and integrated services.

10
Page 28



Better Care Fund

We said we would:
Increase use of 
technology to 
enable people to live 
independently in their 
own homes.

We implemented…
an enhanced Telecare offer across the city, 
providing support across all client groups and 
care settings as a core element of our Home First 
offer.

Telecare is provided at the centre of reablement 
support in the community and, enabling people 
to maximise their independence and reduce the 
requirement for long-term support.

We said we would: 
Enable people 
with dementia and 
their carers to be 
as independent as 
possible, for as long as 
possible. 

We completed…
a review of post-diagnostic support available 
to people with dementia and their carers which 
identified opportunities to clarify the support 
available from the Alzheimer’s Society. 

As a result a new Dementia Navigator role will 
be introduced in September 2015 to work with 
people with dementia and their friends/family.

A standard information pack has also been 
developed for people at the point of diagnosis, 
in order to ensure that people have basic 
information, including Alzheimer’s Society support 
and the dementia portal.

www.livingwellwithdementia.org

Team members work together to support people 
and their carers and to provide care solutions that 
are personalised, local, minimally restrictive and 
best value.

Now that the team is in place there is further 
work to do to drive demonstrable improvements 
for people with disabilities from this new way of 
working.

11
Page 29



Key Achievements (based on the 6 TLAP statements)

TLAP 1) Information and Advice: having the information I need, when I 
need it

This means:
•	 having the information and advice you need in order to remain as 

independent as possible 
•	 having access to easy to understand information about care and support 

which is consistent, accurate and up to date
•	 knowing where to get information about what is going on in your 

community

1.1	 Improved health and social care information on website 
 
The website content for Adult Social Care has been updated to support 
people to find all the information they may need about care and support. 
The overall aim was to improve content and make it easier for people to 
find information and understand it, using a question and answer format for 
key pages.

Further improvements will be made during 2015 using the feedback 
from user testing. This work has been completed as part of the Care Act 
Implementation programme.

1.2 Care and Support Directory  

A new Care and Support Directory has been developed to help people 
find information on care and support options in the local area. The 
directory includes information about different types of support available 
in Coventry including; Day Opportunities, Home Support, Housing with 
Care, Residential Care, Nursing Care and our Shared Lives Scheme. The 
directory also provides details of organisations that provide information and 
advice about social care to help people make informed choices about the 
options available to them.  

12
Page 30



1.3 Community Activities Directory

A new, city-wide directory of community activities, ranging from Archery 
to Zumba, has been developed to help residents discover some of the 
groups and activities available on their doorstep. Coventry City Council’s 
Community Development Service has created the directory in order to 
provide a single point of access to a wide range of community activities 
across the city. There are currently over 700 groups and activities listed, 
with more being added every day. 

1.4 Healthwatch Coventry Information Access Points 

Healthwatch Coventry is the independent champion for health and 
social care in the city. Part of their role is to provide the public with basic 
information about health and social care services.  Information Access 
Points were established in 2014 to provide this service. These access 
points have been established in all libraries and within other voluntary 
organisations, like Age UK Coventry and Carers Trust.
There have been a total of 372 enquiries through the Access Points from 
April 2014 through to April 2015.

1.5 Advocacy Services  

During 2014/15 work was undertaken to reconfigure existing advocacy 
services to meet the new requirements of the Care Act from April 2015. 
These new services were implemented on 1st April 2015.

An 18 month pilot service was developed through Age UK Coventry 
and Coventry and Warwickshire Grapevine working in partnership to 
deliver advocacy to enable participation in assessments, reviews and 
safeguarding. This includes the provision of a single point of access and 
referral system for all advocacy required under the Care Act.

13
Page 31



Case Study 1 
Being a Carer – Helen’s Story

Background
Helen is a 72 year old lady who cares for her 50 year old son who 
experiences mental ill health. He lives independently in the community and 
does not receive statutory services. However, without his mum’s support on 
a daily basis this would not be possible.  

Action
Helen had a Carer’s Assessment in 2014 which identified that she had 
become very isolated and was seeing less of her family and friends because 
it was difficult to find the time to manage her own household and support her 
son. She has deteriorating physical health and the pressure of caring was 
impacting on her further.  

The outcomes she wanted to achieve were to take up her hobby of 
photography again as she had stopped taking time for herself, and to 
maintain better contact with family and friends. She had a personal budget 
which she used to buy a tablet device – she uses this for photography and 
for keeping in touch by email and video link with family and friends.  

Impact
Helen wrote to thank us earlier this year. “Thank you very much for enabling 
me to buy a tablet. It has made a big difference to my life as a carer for my 
son because I now have a greater contact with family and friends.”

14
Page 32



TLAP 2) Active and supportive communities, keeping 
friends, family and place

This means:

•	 having a network of people who support you – carers, family, friends, 
community and if needed paid support staff

•	 having opportunities to train, study, work or engage in activities that match 
your interests, skills, abilities

•	 feeling welcomed and included in your local community

2.1 Community Development Service 

The Community Development Service was established in 2014 and has 
made good progress during the last 12 months in contributing to the 
delivery of the Council’s “Active Citizens, Strong Communities Strategy”, 
The strategy aims to deliver asset based working in the city; through 
working alongside communities, partners and the voluntary sector. The 
service focuses on supporting community groups to develop and engages 
with local communities to provide improved outcomes. The support that 
the service offers includes helping groups access funding and connecting 
people and groups together.

2.2 Carers Support Improvements

Support for carers to take a break is now on a more flexible and individual 
basis through a combined assessment of the person cared for and the 
carer in line with the Care Act.

Two of the main organisations in the city that provide support to carers, 
Crossroads Care and Coventry Carers’ Centre, merged in June 2015 to 
form a new organisation called Carers Trust - Heart of England which 
provides a one stop shop for carers support. This has given us a unique 
opportunity to develop services for carers as part of an 18 month pilot 
scheme. 

15
Page 33



“The food is fresher, fresh herbs, fresh 
smells, fresh ingredients, adventurous, 
the people preparing the food were 
really friendly and enthusiastic…”

“I just want to state my amazement 
of The Pod. What a fantastic place 

buzzing full of life, excitement, interest”

2.3 The Pod Update - Food Union and Time Union Coventry 

In December 2014, The Pod, which supports people in their mental health 
recovery journey, launched two city-wide projects to further inspire change 
as a progressive community catalyst. Citizens from all over the city were 
given the opportunity to take part in shaping Food Union and Time Union 
projects through contributing their ideas at events held prior to the launch 
date. These were well attended and featured energetic discussions and 
inspiring talks from supporters. 

Food Union
Food Union was designed to create conversation, community and action 
around food and also focuses on food growing. The Pod currently runs two 
weekly cooking events aimed at bringing people together to experiment 
with local, fresh, healthy, low-cost produce. These events have seen 
around 20 people directly participating in food preparation, and many more 
tasting the food or buying it during our Revive Café ‘Takeover’ sessions.

16
Page 34



Time Union
Time Union is a city-wide time 
bank, based on the simple 
idea that members give an 
hour of time, and then get 
an hour back in return. Time 
Union is open to all adults in 
the city (18+). Time Union has 
gained a diverse membership 
including professionals, artists, 
service users, students, and 
unemployed and retired 
people. The flexibility for 
people to fit ‘timebanking’ 
into any schedule has made this possible. Time Union has been widely 
promoted and targeted across Coventry, as a main aim is to break down 
perceived barriers between people and between different areas of the city.

“Thanks very much Gemma for putting me in touch with Fred, 
who applied his magic on getting an old 70’s stereogram up and 
working. It did take just over an hour, but with a few drops of oil, 
the motor for the turntable began spinning! It was estimated that 
it would have cost a thousand to get someone to look at it – so I 

couldn’t be happier! I am only too glad to be a part of Time Union 
and hope I can be as helpful to someone as Fred has been for me.”

2.4 Learning Disability Day Opportunities – ‘Do You Wanna Be A Star?’ 

“Do You Wanna Be A Star”, a group of people with learning disabilities 
who regularly meet up and showcase their talents, was a finalist at the 
National Learning Disability Awards 2014, having been shortlisted for the 
People’s Award. This award celebrates individuals or organisations who 
offer exceptional encouragement and support for individuals with learning 
disabilities and/or autism in providing support services and/or personal 
development and inclusion.  

17
Page 35



2.5 Age Friendly Cities Update
 
Coventry was one of the first cities in the UK to adopt the Age Friendly 
Cities (AFC) programme which aims to prepare for the rapid ageing of 
populations and improve the quality of life for older people. Coventry 
City Council, Age UK Coventry and Coventry University are working in 
partnership to plan and implement the AFC programme to promote active 
ageing. 

The programme of work began in October 2014 and has involved a variety 
of activities and events to date. These activities included learning from 
other AFC across the UK, stakeholder mapping and engagement work, 
completion of a baseline assessment and shaping themed action plans for 
the first year of programme delivery.

Age-
friendly

city

H
ou

si
ng

Transportation

Social participation

Respect and
social inclusion

Community support

and health services

Outdoor spaces
and buildings

C
ivic participation

and em
ploym

entC
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

18
Page 36



Case Study 2 
The Pod – Robert’s Story

Background

Robert was referred to The Pod by Reach as part of a pilot scheme in which 
16-18 year olds will receive six sessions from development workers. Prior 
to this, he was supported by Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 
(CAMHS) for several years with continued intervention via the Journey Team 
at Mind. At the time of referral Robert was feeling socially isolated and suffers 
with low self-esteem due to him being regularly bullied.

Robert highlighted a desire to have more day to day stimulation and activity 
and is passionate about gaming.

Action

Robert and his development worker looked at the BAFTA Young Games 
Designer Awards website, a resource Robert had not been aware of 
previously. This presented Robert with an encouraging insight into the 
accessibility and developmental platforms into the games industry and 
ignited a plan to submit his own game concept or playable game.

Robert assembled a small team to help him do this. 

Robert was also signposted to several emerging games professionals 
selected for BAFTA Breakthrough Brits in 2013 and contacted them for 
advice. He received replies from every single one (including a BAFTA 
winner). They all offered thorough foundation planning and career advice 
and even encouraged him to keep them updated with his project. 

Following this, Robert met with Samantha Clarke from the Serious Games 
Institute in Coventry to gain an understanding into what they do and explore 
significant learning opportunities within his hometown. Samantha also 
offered to mentor Robert through his Young Games Designer project. 

Impact

Since being referred to The Pod, Robert said: “It’s been important to me 
in terms of my overall happiness and self-belief. I am much happier and 
don’t mope around as much as I used to. I’m also more motivated and 
entrepreneurial since attending The Pod.”

19
Page 37



TLAP 3) Flexible integrated support: my support, my 
own way 

This means:

•	 being in control of planning your care and support
•	 having care and support that is directed by you and responsive to your 

needs
•	 having support that is coordinated, co-operative and works well together 

and knowing who to contact to get things changed

3.1 Better Care Fund

The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a national programme to support the 
transformation and integration of Health and Social Care so that local 
people receive improved care. It is a real opportunity for change, so that 
people receive the right care and support at the right time, in the right 
place. 

On 22nd December 2014, NHS England approved Coventry’s plan that 
incorporated the pooling of £52 million worth of joint funding for 2015/16. 
Implementation of planned changes commenced on 1st April 2015.

3.2 Home First

Coventry City Council has moved to a new ‘Home First’ approach which 
aims to provide support to people to regain the skills and confidence to 
live independently following a stay in hospital or following deterioration 
at home. This approach to supporting more people at home was agreed 
across health and social care and will improve our ability to support people 
in a more flexible way.

The ‘Home First’ approach is supported by three short-term home support 
agencies, contracted following a tender exercise in early 2014. Of the 
people supported by the three agencies, 51% regained daily living skills to 
live a fully independent life requiring no ongoing care and support from the 
Council or health partners.  

20
Page 38



3.3 Revised Telecare Offer

The new Telecare offer was launched in October 2014 aimed at increasing 
the numbers of people supported at home through the use of technology 
as part of a care and support service.

Based on feedback from people that had previously considered using 
Telecare a 24 hour responder function will be implemented from September 
2015. 

There have been over 800 new installations since 1st October 2014 when 
the new Telecare offer was launched.

3.4 Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INT’s)

In 2014 a ‘Hot House’ event was held with staff across health and social 
care to develop an innovative solution to providing joined-up health and 
social care services.  From this event Integrated Neighbourhood Teams 
(INTs) were born.

Following development work undertaken in 2014 two GP Practices in 
Coventry have been piloting a model of Integrated Neighbourhood Teams 
(INTs) since July 2014. At the heart of this model was the establishment of 
Multi-Disciplinary Teams, who have so far worked with around 30 people.
  
The teams consist of a GP, Community Matron, Community Nurse, Social 
Worker, Community Development Worker, Occupational Therapist, Mental 
Health Worker and other professionals, and are supported by the voluntary 
sector (Age UK Coventry). While detailed evidence is currently being 
collated, initial feedback shows specific and measurable benefits from 
working in this way. 

Work is now being undertaken to scope the city-wide scale-up of this 
model, and how the concept of INTs can be implemented across the city.
  

21
Page 39



3.5 Dementia Discharge to Assessment

The Discharge to Assess project focuses on supporting people, with a 
diagnosis of dementia, who are discharged from hospital. The service was 
commissioned following the reduction of bedded short-term capacity in the 
city with a focus on community based support in line with the ‘Home First’ 
agenda. 

The service, delivered in partnership with Crossroads, works with 
individuals and their families to maximise a person’s independence through 
a range of specialist interventions. The creation of a dementia ‘Locksmith’ 
role within a community based setting has produced some positive 
outcomes for people. The Locksmith service has recently been extended to 
support a range of pathways and more people from different settings.

3.6 Mental Health Street Triage

Street triage schemes see mental health nurses accompany police officers 
to incidents where police believe people need immediate mental health 
support. A street triage service was introduced in the city and has been 
operational since 1st December 2014. The aim is to ensure people get the 
medical attention they need as quickly as possible. 

The service is continuing to embed within the local criminal justice 
and health systems and has had a successful start. Further areas for 
development have been identified including reviewing operational model 
demand and reviewing the partnership with West Midlands Ambulance 
Service. The service was featured as part of the work around Coventry as a 
Marmot City and is working closely with social services, community safety, 
housing, public health and substance misuse services.

3.7 Transforming Care (Post Winterbourne View) 

The images of the abuse suffered at Winterbourne View remain vivid in 
our memories and continue to drive work to improve services for Adults 
with Learning Disabilities. Along with our health partners we are working 
with individuals and families placed out of Coventry to support them to 
return to more independent settings in the city wherever appropriate. For 
those temporarily receiving support in hospital assessment and treatment 
units we have ensured that Clinical Treatment Reviews have taken place 
and maintained oversight of the appropriateness of placements and 
arrangements for step down from hospital.

22
Page 40



TLAP 4) Workforce (and awards): my support staff 

This means:

•	 having good information and advice on the range of options for choosing 
your support staff

•	 having access to a pool of people, advice on how to employ them and the 
opportunity to get advice from peers

•	 being supported by people who help you to make links in your local 
community. 

3.8 Disabled Facilities Grants Update  

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) provide essential adaptations to enable 
people to continue living at home. In 2014/15, 407 DFGs were provided, 
resulting in a wide range of home adaptations being carried out in 
Coventry. The average timeframe from receiving the recommendation to 
completion was 11 weeks.

4.1 Principal Social Worker posts

Two Principal Social Worker posts were appointed in early 2015, one for 
Children and Families and one for Adults. The two appointees will play a 
key role in the improvement and development of social work practice in 
Coventry. 

4.2 Preparing the Workforce for the Care Act

The Care Act brings care and support legislation together into a single Act 
with a new well-being principle at its heart. It introduces major reforms to 
the legal framework for adult care and support in England - to the duties 
of local authorities, to the rights of those in need of care and support and 
their carers and to the funding system for care and support. Workforce 
development activity focused on ensuring our workforce was ready to make 
these changes.

Comprehensive legal overview training supported staff and councillors to 
understand the Care Act. Specialist sessions were delivered to all frontline 
staff on eligibility carers, safeguarding, personalised assessment and 
support planning. 

23
Page 41



In addition to this we have commenced a training programme to develop 
the Adult Social Care workforce to undertake more creative support 
planning focusing on individual’s strengths, connecting people to their local 
networks, communities and resources. This change in approach to support 
planning will enable more people to have holistic, person centred plans 
which improve their well-being and meet their care and support needs.  

4.3 Coventry Cares Learning Network regarding Coventry Dignity 
Network 

The Coventry Cares Learning Network has supported organisations 
in meeting the challenge of recruitment in social care organisations 
across Coventry through development of the Social Care Careers in 
Coventry campaign. This has included running sector specific jobs fairs, 
development of careers and vacancies’ online information and jobs boards, 
and regular information sessions for job seekers at Coventry Job Shop. 

Coventry City Council has continued to support registered managers 
through the Registered Managers Networking Group, for which continued 
funding was secured from the National Skills Academy. The Council 
has also continued to support external organisations in the city through 
briefings, workshops and presentations about the changes brought in 
during 2015 with the Care Act and the Care Certificate.

4.4 Celebrating Social Work 

It is important to recognise our workforce achievements.  Social Workers 
from across Children and Adult Services came together in October 2014 
to ‘Celebrate Social Work’. This event was held to recognise and celebrate 
good practice as well as the professional responsibility of continuing 
professional development.

Certificates of practice achievement were presented to social workers who 
had passed their Assessed and Supported Year in Employment as well as 
to those that had gained their Practice Educator qualifications. 

4.5 The Pod/The Revive Café

The Pod/Revive Café is a hub and platform for many different creative 
experiences all designed to bring together and connect a rich mix of 
people. Since winning the Public Service Community Cohesion Award in 
July 2014 The Pod/Revive Café has grown its determination to act as a 
catalyst for positive change and cohesion. 

24
Page 42



The Pod/Revive Café has gained a regional reputation as an Arts and 
Cultural Hub and is cited as such on the Coventry Art Map, a community 
resource that highlights arts centres of significant interest. 

The Pod art collective at Fargo 

Collective/Pod has a majority membership of artists with severe and 
enduring mental ill health who are or have been supported by The Pod and 
believe that creativity challenges and infiltrates what we do and how we 
feel, both subconsciously and consciously.
 
They are the proud custodians and curators of the Bob and Roberta 
Smith shed known as the Coventry Centre of Contemporary Art (CCCA). 
Internationally acclaimed Bob and Roberta Smith conceived the shed as an 
alternative fine arts exhibition and project space for Coventry. 
 
Before moving to Fargo, the CCCA has been hosted by the Mead, Earlsdon 
Primary School and The Herbert. Bob and Roberta Smith led a high profile, 
political campaign to assert the importance of arts and culture in education 
and life. Collective//Pod also believe that creative arts practice should 
provoke ideas, debate and change. 

Various exhibitions have been held since the launch in December 2014. 

4.6 Dementia Friendly Environments Project 

Coventry City Council was given a silver ‘Compact’ award in recognition 
of excellent partnership working as part of the Dementia Friendly 
Environments project. The award was given after the Council, Age UK 
Coventry, the Alzheimer’s Society, Emerald Care and Minster Care worked 
with people with dementia to undertake a ‘walk the patch’ exercise at 5 care 
facilities in the city and play a full role in the redesign and refurbishment of 
these care facilities.

The project produced incredibly positive outcomes for those involved and 
led to huge improvements in the quality of life for people with dementia 
including fewer falls and hospital admissions.

25
Page 43



TLAP 5) Positive risk enablement: feeling in control and 
safe 

This means:

•	 being able to plan ahead and keep control in a crisis
•	 feeling safe, living the life you want and being supported to manage any 

risks
•	 feeling that your community is a safe place to live and local people look 

out for you and each other

5.1 Making Safeguarding Personal

Making Safeguarding Personal is a shift in culture and practice in response 
to what makes safeguarding effective from the perspective of the person 
being safeguarded. It is about having conversations with people about 
how we might respond in safeguarding situations in a way that enhances 
involvement, choice and control as well as improving quality of life, well-
being and safety. 

Work to date has focussed on awareness sessions for managers 
and champions to drive a cultural shift in practice and revamping the 
safeguarding process to ensure users’ views, wishes and outcomes (as 
expressed by themselves or their nominated representative or advocate) 
are central and shape what happens during adult safeguarding.

5.2 Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) and Mental Capacity

DoLS is a process whereby anyone living in a care home or staying in a 
hospital, who lacks capacity to consent to their care arrangements, and 
who may be deprived of their liberty, must undergo an assessment. 

DoLS presented the Council with a big challenge in 2014/15. The number 
of requests by care homes and hospitals to authorise possible deprivation 
of liberty of individuals in their care increased from 122 in the previous year 
to 681. This increase was due to a judgement by the Supreme Court which 
extended the definition of a deprivation of liberty. To meet this increased 
demand a dedicated DoLS team consisting of 5.5 Best Interests Assessors 
(BIAs) is in the process of being set up. Training of BIAs and Authorisers 
across the different Adult Social Care teams also took place. 

26
Page 44



In addition to people in care homes and hospitals the People Directorate 
has begun to identify individuals who may be deprived of their liberty in 
other settings, such as supported living schemes and in their own homes. 
These deprivations need to be authorised by the Court of Protection.

5.3 Update from Safeguarding Adults Board (including any 
Safeguarding Adults Reviews)  

The Coventry Safeguarding Adults Board is the formal body made up 
of statutory and voluntary members, which oversees how adults are 
safeguarded in the city. As a result of the Care Act 2014, mandatory 
partners on the Board are the Local Authority, Police and Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

Readiness for the Care Act has been a key priority for the Coventry 
Safeguarding Adults Board during 2014/15. Other challenges that the 
Board focused on during this time were raising standards with fewer 
resources and ensuring that there was an appropriate safeguarding 
response to a range of issues, including pressure ulcers. In addition, 
effective working with the Children’s Safeguarding Board and maintaining 
organisational resilience, consistency and capacity around safeguarding 
leadership were also key issues that were addressed during the year.

The Coventry Safeguarding Adults Board produces an annual report, 
describing the achievements and challenges of the year. This report will be 
available on the Council website towards the end of 2015 (www.coventry.
gov.uk/safeguarding). The report will also contain the Board’s Business 
Plan and priorities for the forthcoming year.

During 2014/15, one Serious Case Review (renamed Safeguarding Adults 
Review from April 2015) was initiated in Coventry. This will be completed 
in 2015/16 and reported to Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board. In 
addition, one System Wide Review and one Serious Incident Review were 
also initiated.

5.4 Safeguarding statistics

We received 1,027 safeguarding alerts in 2014/15 representing a 2.4% 
increase from the previous year. The increase in alerts is not necessarily 
an indicator that more abuse is happening. However, it does indicate that 
awareness of adult safeguarding continues to increase across the local 
community and that people know how to raise an alert. 

27
Page 45



TLAP 6) Personal Budgets and Self-Funding: my money 

This means:

•	 having the kind of support you need and knowing when, where and how 
to receive it

•	 knowing the amount of money available to you for care and support 
needs and determining how this is used (whether it’s your own money, 
direct payment, or a Council managed personal budget)

6.1 Assessment and Resource Allocation System

Since the Autumn 2014, work has been continuing on the development of 
the new Adult Social Care assessment tools and resource allocation system. 
The new system will enable practitioners to assess people who have the 
appearance of need for ongoing care and support, to determine eligibility 
and to allocate resources to meet those needs. 

This will contribute to transforming the way we work with and support 
people with care needs. Our aims are to free up practitioners to focus on 
the important activities, such as having different conversations and building 
positive relationships with people that we work with, focusing our time on 
developing creative support plans and brokering good solutions with people 
to meet their individual needs and outcomes whilst promoting their strengths.

The new assessment and support planning tools were launched on 24 
February 2015.

6.2 Improvements in support planning

Coventry City Council introduced a new suite of assessment tools prior 
to the introduction of the Care Act in April 2015. The tools have been 
developed to include all types of support and resources which will improve 
someone’s well-being and reduce or delay their need for ongoing care and 
support, as well as clearly identify how the support will meet someone’s 
eligible and non-eligible needs. 

The Council will be developing innovative solutions to meeting individual’s 
needs and improving their well-being including the use of Individual Service 
Funds. 

6.3 Update on Regional Personalisation Project

Coventry continues to be involved in the regional personalisation network, 
reporting on progress towards achieving TLAP principles and to gain 
support and guidance about developing personalisation.

28
Page 46



Case Study 3 
TeleCareline (working in partnership with Housing with 
Care Short-Term Support) – Alice’s Story

Life before short-term tenancy and Telecare support

Alice is a 91 year old lady who was admitted to hospital having had a 
stroke. She had been living alone and independently prior to her stroke. The 
stroke caused right-sided weakness, inattention and expressive dysphasia 
– making it difficult for her to verbally communicate her needs. She worked 
with the Speech and Language Team to increase her verbal communication. 
Occupational Therapists and Physiotherapists worked on increasing her 
mobility, but the team were unsure whether she would be able to return 
home. 

Referral to short-term tenancy

Alice was moved to Halford Lodge, a Housing with Care scheme, and 
identified as being at risk when cooking, bathing and of falling in general. 
The support workers were heavily involved in assisting her with these areas 
and also prompting her to eat and take her medication. 

Impact of support with short-term tenancy and evidence 
from the Canary activity monitoring system for monitor-
ing a range of everyday activities:

On Alice’s initial pre-discharge assessment, professionals were considering 
a possible long-term placement for her in a residential home. However, the 
Canary system showed that Alice was a lot more active than they would 
have thought and had a structured and fairly consistent routine in place. She 
was getting up at regular times and had visited the kitchen and bathroom 
prior to Support Worker visits. Alice remained active throughout the day and 
her support visits were reduced, with staff only visiting when she requested 
assistance and to prompt her with medication.

Outcome for the person:

From the initial plan of Alice possibly moving to a residential home she has 
been able to return to her own home with a care and support package.

29
Page 47



What’s next – priority areas for Adult Social Care 

In describing priority areas for Adult Social Care it has to be acknowledged 
that the work of Adult Social Care is a process of continuous change and 
improvement as we strive towards delivering support based around the 
individual and their carers within the resources we have available. The key 
areas we are currently progressing in order to further develop Adult Social 
Care in Coventry are as follows:

Priority What’s Next
Care Act 2014 
Implementation

The Care Act, introduced in April 2015 was the single 
most significant change to Adult Social Care legislation 
for over 60 years. We have worked hard to ensure we 
were ready for this change in 2015 and now need to 
ensure that the principles of well-being, prevention and 
integration are embedded in everything we do.

A core element of delivering the requirements of the 
Care Act is developing the workforce across Adult 
Social Care.  Therefore, ensuring that appropriate 
workforce development plans are in place and being 
delivered is a key priority.

Health Integration 
– Better Care 
Fund (BCF)

Integrating services with health can provide both better 
outcomes for people that require support and ensure 
that resources are being used more efficiently. In 2015 
we worked with our health partners to pilot Integrated 
Neighbourhood Teams in two GP (General Practitioner) 
surgeries and will not work to extend this approach 
across the city.

Through our Better Care Programme we have worked 
with health partners and user groups to prevent people 
being admitted to hospital and to support timely and 
appropriate discharge arrangements.  This work will 
continue and we will develop this further through 
working with health partners to ensure appropriate 
community-based provision is available to enable 
people to remain independent in their own homes.

30
Page 48



Mental Health 
and Dementia

The delivery of the objectives contained within 
Coventry’s Living Well with Dementia Strategy 2014-17 
will continue to be an area of focus for this important 
area of work. 

Ensuring people with mental ill health are appropriately 
supported in their best interests is a significant issue 
nationally and we have seen a significant increase 
in demands around the Mental Capacity Act and 
Derivation of Liberty Safeguards in 2014 and 2015.  
Ensuring people are effectively supported through the 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards process is a key 
priority for Coventry.

Managing 
Resources

The financial challenges facing the Council and Adult 
Social Care will need to continue to be addressed in 
coming years.  We will continue to work with people 
who use services, their families and carers and partner 
organisations as we develop and implement plans that 
will enable us to continue to deliver Adult Social Care 
services within the resources available.

31
Page 49



Glossary

This section provides an explanation of some definitions and terms that 
appear throughout this document.

Short-Term Support 
to Maximise 
Independence
(page 3)

Support that is intended to be time limited, with 
the aim of maximising the independence of the 
individual and reducing or eliminating their need 
for ongoing support by the Council. At the end 
of the time-limited support package a review or 
assessment for ongoing future need will take place 
to determine what will follow.

Long-term support
(page 3)

Any service or support which is provided with 
the intention of maintaining quality of life for an 
individual on an ongoing basis, and which has been 
allocated on the basis of national eligibility criteria 
and policies (i.e. an assessment of need has taken 
place) and is subject to annual review.

Low level support 
e.g. equipment and 
adaptations
(page 3)

Following recent changes in the way that services 
and activity in Adult Social Care are reported to, and 
by, Central Government the provision of equipment 
and adaptations are now counted as ongoing ‘low 
level support’ and therefore not included in long-
term support figures. This is because such services 
are based in the community and will continue ‘in 
the background’ supporting clients with minimal 
attention required from the Council.

Well-being
(page 6)

Well-being is a broad concept, relating to many 
areas including: personal dignity, physical and 
mental health and emotional well-being and/or 
protection from abuse and neglect.

Dementia Navigator 
(page 9)

Providing early intervention and preventative post-
diagnostic support through provision of information 
and advice following a diagnosis of dementia or to 
those going through the diagnosis journey. They 
signpost to support services available locally (e.g. 
dementia cafés or carers support groups) and 
provide practical and emotional support to people 
with dementia diagnosis and their carers.

32
Page 50



(Dementia) 
Locksmith 
(page 18)

The role of a person who uses their knowledge 
to unlock people’s potential and unpick issues in 
their present experience of life. The Locksmith must 
understand a person’s weaknesses but focus on 
their strengths to achieve living well with dementia.

Making 
Safeguarding 
Personal (MSP)
(page 23) 

Engaging the person in a conversation about how 
best to respond to their safeguarding situation in a 
way that enhances involvement, choice and control 
as well as improving quality of life, well-being and 
safety.

Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards - 
DoLS (page 23)

A process whereby anyone living in a care home 
or staying in a hospital, who lacks capacity to 
consent to their care arrangements, and who 
may be deprived of their liberty, must undergo an 
assessment. The assessment is to determine firstly, 
whether the person is being deprived of their liberty, 
and secondly whether this is in their best interests. 
The Local Authority then authorises a person’s 
deprivation of liberty for a fixed period of time, if 
this is recommended by the assessor. The scheme 
applies mainly to people who have dementia and 
to people with learning disabilities who need high 
levels of care.

Best Interests (page 
23)

If a person has been assessed as lacking capacity 
then any action taken, or any decision made for, or 
on behalf of that person, must be made in his or her 
best interests.

Safeguarding Adults 
Review
(page 23) 

The Care Act 2014 requires that all Safeguarding 
Adults Boards must arrange a Safeguarding Adults 
Review when an adult in the local area dies or has 
experienced serious abuse or neglect, and there is 
concern that partner agencies could have worked 
more effectively to protect them.

Individual Service 
Funds
(page 25)

If you want to use your personal budget from the 
Council to pay for support (such as home care) 
from a particular provider, the money can be held 
by that provider in an Individual Service Fund. You 
remain in control of what the money is spent on, but 
you don’t have the responsibility of managing the 
budget yourself.

33
Page 51



Contact Us     
You can contact us about this report at: abpd@coventry.gov.uk

You can contact Adult Social Care Direct at:
Email: ascdirect@coventry.gov.uk
Telephone: 024 7683 3003 

Any comments, compliments or complaints can be made by 
contacting Coventry Direct on 0500 834 333, or in person at any 
of the Council’s reception or enquiry areas, or by filling in an 
online form.

More information about Adult Social Care can be found at: 
www.coventry.gov.uk/adultsocialcare

If you need this information in another format or language 
please contact us:
Telephone: 0500 834 333

34
Page 52



35
Page 53



Page 54



Agreed 26/8/15 

 

 
 

Commentary on Adult Social Care Annual Report 2014-15 
 
Healthwatch Coventry is the independent consumer champion for health and social 
care services locally, working for the interests of those who need or use services. 
Our aim is to give local people a voice and an influence over their local services.  
 
The adult social care annual report represents a useful opportunity to put in place 
a quality and reflection cycle for adult social care services and there is scope to 
develop its role in this further.  
 
This Report shows that the challenges in social care continue, increasingly driven 
by a requirement on the local authority to make significant financial savings and to 
implement the Care Act. Although recent government announcements have 
delayed the implementation of the cap on care costs paid by individuals. 
 
The Report also contains some evidence of an increase in demand for services 
when compared with figures from last year’s Report; although the categories used 
are not easily compared. We believe it would be helpful if a standard list could be 
used when reporting year on year, as it is important to understand and 
demonstrate trends. 
 
Requests for support rose by over 500. The figures available also seem to indicate 
less people receiving short term support and more people receiving long term (or 
ongoing) support: a reversal of the previous trend  (the provision of equipment and 
adaptations are now counted as ongoing ‘low level support’ rather than long term 
support, so are not included in this figure now). The overall total of adult social 
care service users and new service users is not provided and we think it should 
have been.  
 
The Care Act established a right for carers to receive an assessment of their needs 
and this is reflected in the figures with 2308 carers assessed and receiving 
information, advice or support; it was 1,974 the previous year. Healthwatch 
supports this focus on assessing and supporting carers as the support they provide 
helps people to stay at home and delays/prevents a need for more intensive and 
more expensive services. For the coming year, we would recommend, there is 
work to do to promote this further. 
 
Last year we queried whether the ethnicity information for social care clients 
showed unmet need in some of the City’s Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic 
communities. There is no mention of this in this year’s report, which is a 
weakness.  
 
In common with other local authorities, Coventry City Council has worked to 
ensure it is compliant with implementing the Care Act and demonstrates well the 
work it has done in this Report. 
 

Page 55



Agreed 26/8/15 

 

A focus on Dementia has been led by the Coventry Health and Wellbeing Board to 
address priorities within the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The past year has seen 
developments in provision to address the concerns of those who have been 
diagnosed and their families/carers. The City Council has clearly played a role in 
this and in the Report outlines further services scheduled to begin later this year. 
 
Healthwatch Coventry recently carried out an exercise to check how easy it was to 
find information on the City Council’s new website in order to feed into the 
refinement of its design and content. We found that it is much more user-friendly 
than the previous website, with information easier to find and understand. 
 
The Report details two areas where service demand is increasing: ‘Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards’ (DOLs) and ‘adult safeguarding’. The first is a result of a court 
ruling meaning that figures have gone up considerably and the latter has resulted 
from a greater awareness of safeguarding, which is positive. The council needs 
resources in order to respond effectively to these demands. 
 
The Better Care Fund initiative, aimed at reducing emergency admissions to 
hospital by initiatives to support people in the community, is an important 
nationally co-ordinated development. Therefore, we believe this rightly features in 
the priorities for the coming year. It is imperative that there is joined-up thinking, 
partnership working and co-ordinated delivery across NHS and social care services 
to support the success of Better Care Fund work. We believe there should also be a 
fundamental shift in thinking to support joined up working, with a move away from 
organisations focusing on their own services and plans and taking a system 
approach.  
 
Specific work includes the set up of 3 Integrated Neighbourhood Teams to support 
people with multiple long term conditions. Plus a significant focus locally on flow 
through the hospital and the impact that delays in transfers of care have upon this. 
Therefore ensuring timely assessment and provision of social care packages is 
important for the effective working of hospital services as well as for individual 
service users and their families. 
 
Healthwatch Coventry will continue to focus actively on the delivery of adult social 
care provision by visiting care homes and working to understand and influence the 
service changes adopted. We have added a work stream to our work programme 
regarding following a group of services users through the changes to the service 
they receive in order to see how the process worked and if there is learning for 
other situations of service change. We wish to work with the city council on this 
piece of work. 
 
Find out more about Healthwatch Coventry at www.healthwatchcoventry.co.uk  

 

Page 56

http://www.healthwatchcoventry.co.uk/


Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5) Work Programme 2015/16

1 July 2015
Addressing Health Inequalities across Coventry 
9 September 2015 
Serious Case Reviews
7 October 2015
Emergency Dentistry
Winter pressures including delayed discharge 
Adult Social Care Annual Report (Local Account) 14/15 
*Nominations for Members to sit on Quality Account Groups to be taken*
Tuesday 3 November 2015
Improving Accommodation for Older People
Director of Public Health Annual Report
18 November 2015
Serious Case Review
Adult Safeguarding Annual Report
6 January 2015
Progress on developing the Primary Care agenda and update on the Prime Ministers 
Challenge Fund
Implementation of the Director of Public Health Annual Report recommendations 
regarding primary care
3 February 2015
Independent Living Fund
Health and Wellbeing Strategy Update including update on reducing health 
inequalities with a focus on the environment (JNSA)
2 March 2015

Date to be Determined
Clinical Management of Large Scale Chronic Diseases – Progress reports on pilots
Care Act – Implications following April 2015
Care Act – Managing the Introduction of the Care Cap (Implementation April 2016)
Section 117 Policy
Deprivation of Liberty Implications
Better Care Programme and Health Integration
Adult Social Care Complaints and Representations Annual Report 2013-14
Coventry and Warwickshire Partnership Trust – progress following CQC Inspection
Community Mental Health Services/ Mental Health Pathways
Patient Transport
PALS Service at UHCW
Adults’ Homes Performance Review
A&E 4 Hour Wait Performance Review
Social Care Finance

Last updated 29/09/15

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

Source Outcomes

1 July 2015 Addressing Health 
inequalities across 
Coventry 

To identify the work taking place, and 
impact of that work, to address the 
health inequalities across Coventry, 
as highlighted by the ‘Coventry’s Life 
Expectancy along the number 10 bus 
route’ diagram in the Director of 
Public Health’s Annual Report 2014.

Jane Moore Update to be added to 
the work programme.

9 September 
2015

Serious Case Reviews To consider the outcome of serious 
case review

Joan Beck 
(Independent 
Chair)

7 October 
2015

Emergency Dentistry For the Board to review the provision 
of out of hours emergency dentistry 
across the City including how other 
NHS services can assist with dental 
issues out of hours.

David Williams 
(NHS England)

7 October 
2015

Winter pressures 
including delayed 
discharge

To include review of effectiveness of 
2014/15 winter arrangements and 
preparations for 2015/16. To include 
CCG, provider organisations and 
social care. To include A&E targets 
and performance.  The Chair will 
meet with UHCW to decide whether 
this needs a full review by the Board
To look at the challenges around 
delayed discharge across health and 
social care. The Chair will meet with 
UHCW and Social Care to decide 
whether this needs a full review by 
the Board.

UHCW/ Cllr Caan/ 
David Watts

7 October 
2015

Adult Social Care 
Annual Report (Local 
Account) 14/15 – 
Report to be circulated

This is the annual report of the 
Council related to services provided 
to Adult Social Care clients. The 
report summarises performance, 

Pete Fahy/
David Watts/
Gemma Tate

P
age 58



Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

Source Outcomes

provides commentaries from key 
partners and representatives of users 
and sets strategic service objectives 
for the future. The report will be 
circulated with the agenda and 
Members given the opportunity to ask 
questions briefly on it at the end of the 
meeting.

7 October 
2015

*Nominations for 
Members to sit on 
Quality Account 
Groups to be taken*

Looking for nominations by Members 
to sit on Quality Account task and 
Finish with WCC and Coventry and 
Warwickshire Health Watch 
colleagues. There are two groups;
UHCW 
CWPT
There is also a task and finish group 
due to run to look at West Midlands 
Ambulance Service, jointly with 
Warwickshire.

Ruth Light –
Coventry 
Healthwatch

Tuesday 3 
November 
2015

Improving 
Accommodation for 
Older People

The Council are looking at changing 
the housing options for Older People 
to bring the accommodation offered 
up to a higher standard. SB5 will have 
an opportunity to feed their views into 
the consultation at this meeting.

Pete Fahy

Tuesday 3 
November 
2015

Director of Public 
Health’s Annual Report 
– Children and Young 
People

The DPH has a statutory opportunity 
to issue Annual Reports which 
provide a commentary of local public 
health profiles and priorities.

Dr Jane Moore

18 November 
2015

Serious Case Review To consider the SCR for Mrs F. Joan Beck 
(Independent 
Chair)/ Cat Parker

18 November Adult Safeguarding The Board are responsible for co- Joan Beck 

P
age 59



Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

Source Outcomes

2015 Annual Report ordinating arrangements to safeguard 
vulnerable adults in the City. The 
Annual Report sets out progress over 
the 2014/15 municipal year and 
provides members with some data to 
monitor activity. Representatives of 
the Safeguarding Board to be invited.

(Independent 
Chair)/ Cat Parker

6 January 
2016

Progress on developing 
the Primary Care 
agenda and update on 
the Prime Ministers 
Challenge Fund

Review of what good primary care 
looks like and whether different 
models of provision produce better 
outcomes. Invite 2 or 3 GP practices 
and patient panel representatives and 
Healthwatch in relation to patient 
engagement.
Needs to include information on the 
recruitment and retention of GPs, 
access and out of hours provision. 
(Needs to link with any Health and 
Well-being Board work)

Simon Brake

6 January 
2016

Implementation of the 
Director of Public 
Health Annual Report 
recommendations 
regarding primary care

The Board would like an update of the 
implantation of the recommendations 
contained within the DofPH annual 
report 2014. 

Dr Jane Moore SB5 19/11/14

3 February 
2016

Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy Update 
including update on 
reducing health 
inequalities with a 
focus on the 
environment (JNSA)

To review the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy (which is based on the data 
collected through the JNSA). Report 
to include a progress report on the 
work being done to reduce health 
inequalities, with particular reference 
to the environmental aspect, as 
discussed by the Board in July.

Dr Jane Moore SB5 01/07/15

3 February Independent Living The Independent Living Fund is Pete Fahy

P
age 60



Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

Source Outcomes

2016 Fund ending and a grant being transferred 
to the Local Authority for 12 months 
aid the transition. After the 12 months, 
it is possible that those supported by 
ILA will need social care services to 
fill the void left by the fund ending. In 
2014, this fund was accessed by 127 
people in Coventry. Date requested 
by Pete Fahy August 2015.

TBC Clinical Management of 
Large Scale Chronic 
Diseases – Progress 
reports on pilots

Future progress reports on the pilot 
projects are brought for consideration 
by the Scrutiny Board as and when 
appropriate.

Dr Jane Moore SB5 11/02/15

TBC Care Act – Implications 
following April 2015

To look at the Care Act and 
understand the possible implications 
for the Council and Residents.

Mark Godfrey

TBC Care Act – Managing 
the Introduction of the 
Care Cap 
(Implementation April 
2016)

To look in early 2016 at the 
preparations for the introduction of the 
Care Cap

TBC Section 117 Policy To be taken in 2015/16 – Check Lavern Newell Forward Plan

TBC Deprivation of Liberty 
Implications

To inform the Board of the current 
position with regards to Deprivation of 
Liberty assessments. 

David Watts Forward Plan 
Jan 15

TBC Better Care 
Programme and Health 
Integration

Regular updates to look at progress Referred from 
health and 
wellbeing board 
April 15

TBC Serious Case Reviews To consider any serious case reviews 
at an appropriate time.

Joan Beck/ Isabel 
Merrifield

P
age 61



Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

Source Outcomes

TBC Adult Social Care 
Complaints and 
Representations 
Annual Report 2013-14

To review levels of complaints, the 
way they are managed and how they 
are used to learn lessons and deliver 
improvements.

John Teahan

TBC Coventry and 
Warwickshire 
Partnership Trust – 
progress following 
CQC Inspection

To review progress against the action 
plan put in place following the Care 
Quality Commission’s review of the 
Trust, particularly in relation to the 
enforcement notice and issues 
relating to Quinton Ward.

CWPT SB5 30/04/14

TBC Community Mental 
Health Services/ 
Mental Health 
Pathways

To provide information to the Board 
on the services provided through the 
shared budget of the Better Care 
Fund in relation to community mental 
health services and integrated team 
working.

Josie Spencer SB5 10/9/14

TBC Patient Transport To look at the patient transport 
service, with specific reference to 
renal dialysis, and how well the new 
contract is serving Coventry residents 
visiting UHCW. The new contracted 
started in April so review Oct/ Nov 
time to enable it to bed in.

SB5 19/11/14

TBC PALS Service at 
UHCW

To look at the PALS Service at 
UHCW following feedback from the 
Quality Accounts meeting

Quality 
Accounts March 
2015

TBC A&E 4 Hour Wait 
Performance Review

To review performance against the 
A&E waiting targets which are 
nationally set. Where issues have 
arised, to understand the remedial 
action which is being put into place.

Informal Meeting 
June 2015

TBC Adults’ Homes To review performance of Adults’ Pete Fahy

P
age 62



Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

Source Outcomes

Performance Review Homes that Coventry adults are 
placed in and procedures for what 
happens if a home is judged 
inadequate by Ofsted.

TBC Social Care Finance With the pressures on finance 
increasing, the Board will look at the 
pressures and what actions are being 
under taken to address these.

Pete Fahy SCRUCO

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 9th September, 2015
	4 Out of Hours Dental Services in Coventry
	5 Winter Pressures Including Delayed Discharge
	6 Adult Social Care Annual Report 2014-15 (Local Account)
	Adult Social Care Annual Report - Appendix 1
	Adult Social Care Annual Report - Appendix 2

	8 Work Programme 2015-16

